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Dear Commissioners,

Royal Commission into Institutional responses to Cild Sexual Abuse — April 2016 public
roundtable into reporting offences and blind reporing

| write for the purpose of providing further infoation in relation to matters canvassed at the Royal
Commission’s criminal justice roundtable into repuay offences and blind reporting.

Consideration of relevant offences

As the Commission recently highlighted in@snsultation Paper: Best practice principlesin responding
to complaints of child sexual abuse in institutional contexts, the work of the Commission has identified
past failures by many institutions to report cls&kual abuse.

In this regard, we welcome the Commission’s conaiilen of whether legislative reform is required in
NSW — whether by way of an amendment to sectiona16eCrimes Act 1900 (NSW), and/or the
creation of a specific offence relating to the mipg of child sexual offences.

As | indicated in my evidence at the roundtable,\oew is that there would be a benefit in a specif
provision which relates to the failure by individeiaonnected with particular institutidrt report to
police child sexual offence allegatich$he offence provision could be tied to anothewvjsion that
imposed a general duty on those with knowledgbede types of allegations to provide all relevant
information to the police. This position is coneigtwith the views that | expressed at the rouridtab
discussions.

However, as | also indicated during the discussibhslieve that there will be circumstances when
withholding relevant information from police shouidt warrant prosecution.

These exceptions to the general rule could be patigrdealt with in two ways. Firstly, like the ®tiorian
legislation, a number of exceptions could be spEtih the legislation. Secondly, as is currerttly tase
with section 316, the prosecution of the offenceldoequire the approval of the Attorney General fo
any prosecution under the section.

Our suggestion that the Attorney General would Hewapprove all prosecutions recognises that there
will be circumstances when a decision to make redbiéport might not conform with a specific statyto
exception to the requirement to provide all relévaaterial relating to an alleged offence, but the

! These institutions could be specified in the Aud/ar prescribed by regulations.
2 The offence might also include the failure to memther forms of serious child abuse.



decision to withhold information might neverthelessform with accepted and appropriate industry
practice.

If a specific offence provision of the type we greposing were enacted, consideration would st#ich
to be given to whether any amendment would be requo section 316. It was noted during the
roundtable discussions that section 316 is usuiakyg in connection with prosecuting a range of aohd
outside the context of a failure to report the anmhabuse of children. Therefore, the generaitytif
this provision would not appear to be in doubt. ldger, what needs to be carefully considered is the
public benefit in using a general provision of ttyige for prosecuting members of the public who,
without a ‘reasonable excuse’, fail to provide imf@ation relating to serious criminal assaults oifdeén.

If the view is taken that a new provision is notded, and that section 316 should continue as the
avenue for prosecuting members of the public fareporting information to Police that is relevamt
serious criminal child abuse, our view is that isec816(4) should be amended to require all such
prosecutions of this kind to be approved by thewity General (and not merely in the limited
circumstances currently specified in section 30)6(4a)addition, and from a policy perspective, the
Attorney General should publish guidelines as temvtine prosecution of these cases would be
appropriate (a matter that could be required inebeslation).

In this regard, published guidelines along thesesliwould serve to both identify and promote good
practice in this area, and also remedy difficuliesociated with the fact that what constitutes a
‘reasonable excuse’ is not clarified in the ledisia

Irrespective of any findings and recommendatioashied by the Commission on these issues (and any
resulting outcome in terms of legislative amendnieNSW), the key message that we have taken away
from the roundtable is the need for our office rkvtogether with relevant stakeholders to improve
practice in this area. In particular, we are cutygprogressing two specific issues which wereadiat

the roundtable.

Factsheets for victims in NSW

As discussed at the roundtable, there is a nemdpimve the information provided to alleged victiofs
child sexual abuse — and other forms of seriousebuegarding what will occur if police are addigé
their allegations.

With this in mind, since the roundtable we have padiminary discussions with a number of parties
about the viability of preparing a factsheet foulagtictims of historical child abuse. From these
discussions, it is apparent that the proposedtaetsshould cover, inter alia:

» Areassurance to victims that, except in the mpsggtional circumstances, their views regarding
whether they wish to participate in any police istigation and criminal proceedings would
prevail.

* The right of victims to have a hominated policdadf act as a support person for the purpose of
providing them with regular updates on the progoégheir matter and to address any relevant
guestions or concerns the victim might wish toea@nd

* A specific commitment by police to work with thectrm to address any concerns they might
have for their own safety and/or the safety of rthe

NSW Police Force processes for responding to redistorical child abuse

Associated with the development of resources fatinas, there is also the need for police and other
agencies to have clear and comprehensive interoeggses for responding to reports of sexual alfsse.
the Commission is aware, in 2014 the NSW Policeé&developed an incident report and associated
protocol to be used by non-government organisaiimtiseir reporting of historical allegations ofilch
abuse to Palice. These documents were targetgeeifis groups such as the major faith based
organisations, and were intended to facilitatestrstematic provision of reports of historical allégns

of child abuse to police.

Prior to the development of these resources, nerfgment organisations (NGOs) had been forwarding
reports of historical child sexual abuse direatlyiie Sex Crimes Squad. Upon distributing the palto



and associated resources, the NSW Police Forcestxflthat, in future, organisations forward reptot
the relevant local area command (LAC).

To support the implementation of the new protoa@,understand that in July 2014, the Sex Crimes
Squad distributed a memorandum to the LACs tithRelporting Processes NGO'’s to NSWPF’, together
with a related letter and flow chart (attached)e§dédocuments detail the minimum response to eport
where:

1) the identity of the alleged victim is not knownth® organisation making the report;

2) the identity of the alleged victim is known to thigjanisation making the report and that person
has indicated they are willing to speak with pagliaed

3) the identity of the alleged victim is known to thiganisation making the report and that person
has indicated they do not wish to speak with pdlice

From our review of the above documents, while éslappear that the flow chart provides some avenue
for police to investigate a report that falls ictitegory 3 — particularly in circumstances whemehe
information to suggest that there are childrentbeopersons at risk — the corresponding sectigheof
memorandum fails to include the option of consiaggriminal investigative action within the rande o
potential actions which police might take.

In this regard, | note Detective Superintendant léttg evidence at the roundtable that, in pragtice
criminal investigative action is an option whicHipe can take if they receive a report in categbfand
that oftena range of investigative steps will be pursued). We supgiog view put by Mr David
Shoebridge, MLC at the roundtable that the memarnanshould make it clear that police should always
consider the potential for investigative actionisi¢ould be achieved by adding specific guidandhén
relevant section of the memorandum along the fahligdines:

‘In circumstances where the NGO knows the victimasne but also informs the NSWPF that the
victim is not prepared to take part in a crimimald@stigation, police should take the following step
* Review existing police information holdings abdut person of interest.
* Review any information from the NGO about curresks to children from the person of
interest.
* Based on the above checks, consider whether theydbenscope for a criminal
investigation.’

We propose to put this suggested amendment to SV as part of our ongoing discussions with
them. In addition, we propose suggesting to the R&\What it develops a consistent label for thosiadb
reports’ which are processed by local area comm#ordbe purpose of monitoring the number of such
reports, and the related responses to them byithaiVLACs.

| trust that the information provided is of assist@to the Royal Commission. Please do not hestate
contact me on (02) 9286 0989 or Ms Julianna DengtAssistant Ombudsman, on (02) 9286 0920 if
you would like to discuss this matter.

Yours sincerely

oRL o

Steve Kinmond
Deputy Ombudsman
Community and Disability Services Commissioner

3 In these circumstances the associated protocdhaitient report do not require the organisatioprvide the name of the
alleged victim to police; however this sectionloé NSW Police Force guidance appears to apply tiraumstances where an
alleged victim has indicated they do not wish teadpto police — ie whether or not police have hgrewided the person’s name.
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